
Property / Regeneration Briefing  
 
Dear Member, 
 
You are invited to attend the meeting of the Property / Regeneration Briefing to be held 
as follows for the transaction of the business indicated. 
Tom Stannard 
Chief Executive  

 
DATE: Monday, 12 December 2022 
 
TIME:  3.00 pm 
 
VENUE: Salford Suite, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton 

 
In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting.  

 
AGENDA 
 

1   Apologies for absence  
 

 

2   Declarations of interest  
 

 

3   Items for Decision - Part 1 (Open to the Public)  
 

 

3a Greater Manchester Decarbonisation Scheme - PSDS 3 and 3b  
 

(Pages 3 - 10) 

4   Public Briefing Items  
 
The following items are for the primary purpose of providing members 
of the public with all relevant information on the respective matters, 
other than those elements, which in accordance with the relevant 
sections of the Local Government Act 1972, remain confidential and 
require that any arising decision is taken in Part 2 of the agenda. 
 

 

4a 2 New Bailey, Part 6th and 7th Floors - Lettings (also see item 6a)  
 

(Pages 11 - 13) 

4b 100 Embankment, 6th Floor - Lettings (also see item 6b)  
 

(Pages 14 - 15) 

4c 100 Embankment, East Wing, Ground, 1st and Part 2nd Floors - 
Additional Contribution (also see item 6c)  
 

(Pages 16 - 17) 

5   Exclusion of the Public  
 

 

6   Items for Decision - Part 2 (Closed to the Public)  
 

 

6a 2 New Bailey, Part 6th and 7th Floors - Lettings  
 

(Pages 18 - 20) 

Public Document Pack



 

6b 100 Embankment, 6th Floor - Lettings  
 

(Pages 21 - 23) 

6c 100 Embankment, East Wing, Ground, 1st and Part 2nd Floors - 
Additional Contribution  
 

(Pages 24 - 26) 

7   Any other business  
 

 

 
Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 3013 
Mike Relph, Senior Democratic Services Advisor E-Mail: mike.relph@salford.gov.uk 



 

 
 

 
ITEM NO. 

  
 
 REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR OF PLACE  
 

  
 
 TO PROPERTY & REGENERATION BRIEFING ON 12th DECEMBER 2022  
  
 
TITLE: GM PUBLIC SECTOR DECARBONISATION SCHEME BRIEFING – PSDS 3 &   
            PSDS 3b 

  
 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 

i. That the City Mayor and Lead Member note that the number of installations of 
air source heat pump systems under PSDS 3 has reduced to 2 sites to ensure 
Salford City Council’s continued participation in the ‘Supporting Greater 
Manchester Regional Heat and Energy Decarbonisation Delivery’ Scheme – 
PSDS 3. 

ii. That the City Mayor and Lead Member notes the requirement to accept and 
sign an amended Grant Funding Agreement Letter for PSDS 3, once it has 
been received, including the increased match funding requirement. 

iii. That the City Mayor and Lead Member approve our involvement in the PSDS 
3b bid and the requirement to accept and sign a Grant Offer Letter for the 
further round of funding (PSDS 3b) and the match funding requirements 
should we be successful. 

  
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 

Salford City Council (SCC) is part of a consortium, led by the Greater Manchester 
Combined Authority (GMCA), for Government funding to install heat decarbonisation 
and energy generation technologies across the public estate.  
 
In this round, PSDS 3, the consortium has secured £15.5m Government funding for 
the Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme, through Salix as the funding body and 
Department for Business, Energy & Industrial Strategy (BEIS) as the relevant 
government department. 
 
As part of that bid SCC had secured £331k of grant funding for the installation of Air 
Source Heat Pumps at 4 sites with the remainder of the £780k budget being met by 
SCC USB capital budget. Of the four sites identified originally only 2 have been 
selected as viable options for delivery in this round of PSDS as following the 
procurement process costs for all four sites were not in line with pre tender budget 
estimations. Current market conditions, inflation and supply chain issues have 
determined the inclusion of all four sites was no longer economically possible with 
the budget envelope allocated through the funding. It should also be noted that the 
grant regime is less generous than previous rounds. 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3a



 

Feedback from partner authorities within the PSDS 3 consortium has confirmed cost 
increases in this sector are being seen across the board with others reducing their 
project scope for this round.  
 
In addition, Salford City Council has selected 1 site to put forward in the round 3b 
Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme, another bidding round of the scheme on 
which GMCA are leading a funding consortium bid. The application opened 12th Oct 
22 and the process is similar to previous rounds with site selection criteria and first 
come first served basis of funding allocation. The GMCA bid submitted included 
grant of £387k for Salford for the Eccles Town Hall site. Similar to PSDS 3 there will 
be a requirement to provide match funding from Council budgets. We expect 
notification of funding award early 2023.  
 
  
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 

 

 Five year environment plan for Greater Manchester 

 Salford’s Climate Change Strategy – Creating a city prepared for the future 

 Property & Regen Briefing - GM HEAT AND ENERGY DECARBONISATION 

SCHEME – BATTERIES & PSDS3– 28th February 2022 

  
WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S): 
 
ALL 
  
 
KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 

 

 Five year environment plan for Greater Manchester 

 Great Eight – Tackling the Climate Emergency 

 Climate Emergency Declaration  
  

 
1. Introduction 

 
The report presented to the 28th February 2022 Property & Regeneration Briefing 
outlined the update of the ‘Supporting Greater Manchester Regional Heat and 
Energy Decarbonisation Delivery’ Bid.  
 
The Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme 3 funding consortium bid has been 
approved by Salix and an award has been made to GMCA of £15.5m. This report is 
seeking to update previously outlined scope, project costs and associated grant and 
match funding requirements in respect of SCC’s proposal under this scheme.  
 
The total project value for Salford City Council was originally £747,467 to install Air 
Source Heat Pumps at 4 sites. Following the procurement exercise, costs for all four 
sites were not in line with pretender budget estimations. Current market conditions, 
inflation and supply chain issues have determined the inclusion of all four sites was 
no longer economically possible within the budget envelope allocated through the 
funding. As a result, the scope of the project has been updated with 2 sites now 
being taken forward.  

Page 4



 

 
Salford City Council’s proposal includes 2 Salford City Council owned sites, as listed 
at Annex 1. 
 
This report also provides an update on the next round of the Public Sector 
Decarbonisation Scheme 3b which GMCA submitted a consortium funding bid for on 
12th Oct 22. SCC identified 1 site which met with funding criteria and estimated 
budget requirements, as listed at Annex 2. Should the bid be successful this report 
requests approval to sign the Grant Offer Letter and including match funding 
requirements through SCC capital budget funding.  
 
2. Background 
 
The Greater Manchester’s 5-Year Environment Plan sets out GM’s long-term 
environmental vision. The plan sets out urgent actions that need to be taken in the 
next 5 years to help achieve carbon neutrality by 2038. On 17 July 2019 the council 
unanimously declared a Climate Emergency underlining the seriousness of the need 
to mitigate climate change. 
 
Salford City Council is seeking to install air source heat pump systems at 3 sites to 
continue that commitment to reducing fossil fuel use as part of its contribution 
towards Greater Manchester’s target of becoming a carbon-neutral city region by 
2038. The schemes will decarbonise the heat at the three sites saving an estimated 
83.62 tCO2e per annum. 
 
3. PSDS 3 update 
 
Following the procurement exercise, and resulting increase in costs, the scope of the 
project has been updated with 2 sites now being taken forward with a total project 
value of £870,238. This is grant funding of £245,686 and match funding of £624,552. 
Additional match funding from SCC’s existing Capital USB Budget has been 
identified to enable these 2 sites to proceed. 
 
The 2 sites selected, Turnpike House Messroom and Beesley Green Community 
Centre, for PSDS round 3 have been reviewed and accepted by Salix alongside the 
eligibility criteria for the funding.  
 
Alongside the installation of air source heat pumps, which will decarbonize the 
heating systems, all 3 buildings will also receive other building fabric improvement 
works inclusive of loft and roof insulation, window and door glazing upgrades. This 
will also improve the energy efficiency of the buildings. 
 
Given the timescales remaining to deliver the round 3 project it is important to note 
works will be funded by the grant funding first and then match funding. Any works 
completed post 31st March 2023 date will be funded by the project match funding.  
 
It is anticipated round 3b will also be structured in much the same way with tight 
funding award and delivery dates and a match funding requirement alongside any 
grant award. 
 
Following the successful delivery of PSDS 1 there is confidence that these sites can 
also be delivered by funding deadlines. 
 

Page 5



 

3.1 Procurement 

The Procurement Board on 20th April 2022 approved that the council would seek to 
procure the design and build of the PSDS 3 works through the Procure Plus 
Framework.  
 
A mini competition procurement process was undertaken as per the Framework 
guidance, and the successful contractor, Rothwell Group, has been appointed 
following Procurement Board approval to award the contract on 26th October 2022. 
 
The mini competition was evaluated with the following weightings, 40% Commercial 
and 45% Quality and 15% Social value. Rothwell’s were the only supplier who 

submitted a tender, their submission was in line with their bid to be a Framework 

Supplier and the supplier is appointable based on their submission. 

 
3.2 Grid Considerations 
 
At this stage we do not anticipate any grid connection issues, early engagement has 
taken place with ENW and the 2 sites within round 3 have been shared with them. 
ENW have completed an initial review of both and confirmed no key considerations 
or issues with connections at either site.  
 
3.3 Planning 
 
It is understood that planning will be required at both sites as installations of this 
nature are subject to Planning Approval. Noise impact assessments will be 
undertaken as part of this process and where stipulated allowance made for acoustic 
enclosures. Work will be done to complete and submit the required planning 
applications. 
 
4. PSDS 3b 
 
The Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme 3b, like previous rounds, has specific 
eligibility criteria that must be met to submit a compliant bid. 
• Applicants must be a public sector organisation.  
• Applicants must be using a fossil-fuelled heating system.  
• The heating system in question should be coming to the end of its useful life. 
• The heating system must be replaced by a low carbon alternative.  
• A ‘whole building’ approach must be taken to decarbonisation where the  
           building should be made as energy efficient as is practical before the low  
           carbon heating is installed.  
• The projects will be for delivery in 23/24. 
• Applicants must contribute a proportion of their own funding towards the  
           project. As a minimum this proportion is equivalent to the full costs of   
           replacing their existing heating system on a like-for-like basis. 
• £325 cost per tonne of CO2e –reduced from £500 in PSDS 1. 
 
On behalf of Salford, GMCA funded feasibility studies to be undertaken by Anthesis 
on two sites identified by Salford as meeting the grant funding criteria. The reports 
show that both Burrows House and Eccles Town Hall are suitable for a range of 
Decarbonisation measures.  
 

Page 6



 

In preparation for another round of PSDS funding, a Capital USB bid was submitted 
for £500k in 23/24 to be used as match funding for the scheme. 
 
However, after reviewing the estimated costs to decarbonize the sites and allowing 
for additional costs for contingency, inflation, planning conditions etc the estimated 
total cost was far more than the potential grant of £605k with £500k match funding.  
 
Therefore, after review of the sites, the view is that Eccles Town Hall is the preferred 
site currently in terms of impact and carbon savings for Salford.  
 
The total estimated project value for Salford City Council is £1,040,460 to install air 
source heat pumps, new radiators, pipework, double glazing and PV at this 1 site. 
The funding split for the project will be Grant of £387,756, Invest to Save of £49,538 
(for the PV element of the project) and match funding of £603,166 from Capital USB, 
£100k more than the original capital bid. The capital bid for £500k for 23/24 which 
had been submitted and has now been resubmitted to increase it to £600k to cover 
the estimated costs. 
 
This report is seeking to update on the progress of the PSDS 3b bid and confirm that 
should the bid be successful approval will be sought to sign the Grant Offer Letter,  
once match funding requirements through SCC capital budget funding have been 
confirmed.  
 
4.1 Procurement 

We will discuss the most appropriate route to market to tender the installations which 
will likely be a Framework. Given the value, the request to go out to tender and 
award of the contract will be taken to procurement Board for approval. 
 
4.2 Grid Applications 
 
Work has continued to ensure SCC is able to work quickly following approval of the 
sites with applications for grid connection to be submitted to Electricity North West. 
 
4.3 Planning 
 
Following the installation of PSDS 1 Air Source Heat Pumps the team understands 
the requirement for Planning Approvals for installations of this type at public sector 
sites. Work will be done to complete and submit the required planning application. 
 
5. Delivery 

The GMCA have established a Delivery Group for the partners of the PSDS 3 and 
PSDS 3b projects that meet monthly to discuss progress and issues as well as a 
dedicated Programme Manager for the scheme who works with partners. There are 
monthly grant claims and progress reports that SCC submit to provide updates on 
progress with the delivery of the scheme.  
 
Internally, there is a multifunctional team from property, energy management and 
regeneration supporting the delivery, who report to the Head of Buildings & Facilities 
on the scheme. 
  
 

Page 7



 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: 
 

The main risks to the proposal are as follows:- 
 

1. Procurement of necessary specialist contractors to deliver the installations  
 
Mitigation: Initial discussions will be had with Procurement. 
 

2. Disruption to Council Services during site works 
 
Mitigation: Detailed review of the surveys to identify possible disruptions, installation 
duration, key usage of sites and implement mitigation. The impact of COVID 19 will 
also need to be factored in but could mean reduced usage of buildings. Collaborating 
with internal service colleagues and early discussions with sites to identify alternative 
accommodation should that be required. 
  

3. Timescales for installation 
 

Mitigation: Planning of approval process and procurement exercise have been 
mapped out to ensure works can be awarded with enough time for installation. Early 
engagement with DNO partner ENW to identify works required, cost implications and 
delivery issues. 
 

 

 
SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
Public Sector Decarbonisation Funding – Grant  
USB Capital 22/23 – Low Carbon & Property (PSDS 3) 
USB Capital 23/24 - Low Carbon & Property (PSDS 3b) – Subject to USB Capital Bid 
Invest to Save Funding (PSDS 3b) - Secured 

 

 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS:     Provided by: Shared Legal Service 
 
The report confirms continuing support for the Council’s ambitions in becoming a zero 
carbon city and contribution towards Greater Manchester’s target of becoming a 
carbon-neutral city region by 2038, together with the additional actions to be taken to 
deliver the installation of heat decarbonisation and energy generation technologies 
across the Council’s estate. 
 
The report refers to future procurement activity which is to be carried out to support 
and achieve the installation of the air source heat pumps for which any such activities 
must be undertaken in accordance with the Council’s own contractual standing orders, 
Public Contracts Regulations 2015 (PCR), and any specific grant conditions which 
might impact the procurement. As the report confirms, Procurement Board approval 
will be obtained prior to going out to the market and any award, more than likely using 
an appropriate framework arrangement such as Procure Plus or the GMCA’s Go 
Neutral Framework. 
 
The Procure Plus Framework Agreement for example has specific lots for delivery of 
projects including the installation of heat pumps, whereby suppliers have been 
preselected to supply the defined scope of works or services under an agreed set of 

Page 8



 

terms and conditions. The terms and conditions established under the framework 
agreement govern the contracts let under the framework although each contract will 
inevitably have some differences to reflect the agreement struck between the parties 
to the contract. 
 
The Council is awaiting updated grant funding conditions for PSDS 3 due to the need 
to re-scope the project as a result of inflationary and cost pressures, and a further 
grant funding agreement for PSDS 3b, which will no doubt refer to/incorporate 
milestones, grant purposes, completion dates, etc. so discussions and changes on 
work programmes would clearly have an effect. There may also need to be an 
understanding that usually grant terms and conditions do not favour the recipient, and 
some conditions/milestones etc. may need to be accepted whereas in a more usual 
services contract there might be more negotiation and balance. The terms of the 
revised, and new, grant funding agreements will need to be adhered to in the event 
that there are clawback provisions for failure to comply with timescales and any other 
relevant conditions. 
 

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Provided by: Alison Woods, Interim Commercial 
Finance Manager 
 
Date: 26th October 2022 
 
PSDS 3 
 
Capital implications 
 
It is proposed that the total estimated project costs, which amount to £0.870m, will be 
met from a combination of £0.246m secured PSDS government grant funding and 
£0.624m general unsupported borrowing (SCC match funding), within the approved 
Property capital programme for 2022/23 (and subject to scheme virement approvals). 
 
The estimated contractor costs of £0.785m, comprise of a fixed price allocation of 
£0.616m and a risk allowance of £0.169m, (which includes for planning condition 
costs).  The risk allowance has been reasonably estimated based on previous PSDS1 
project delivery experience and is entirely within SCC control, only being payable upon 
variation order request and further to satisfactory sign off by SCC. 
 
Additional project costs of £0.084m, which are outside of the scope of the contract 
appointment, cover internal officer fees, a GMCA programme management fee of 
3.5% of the approved budget and DNO costs. 
 
Expenditure code: P00065 
 
Revenue Implications 
 
It should be noted that the primary purpose of the project is to reduce carbon and 
fossil fuel usage in public sector buildings, not to generate revenue savings. 
 
As such, there are no significant revenue savings resulting from this scheme and the 
minor revenue expenditure savings indicated during the initial bid stage will 
contribute towards offsetting the energy price increases, which are currently being 
experienced across the sector. 

Page 9



 

 
PSDS 3b 
 
Outline project costs of £1.040m have been established from a feasibility study 
undertaken during 2022 and a grant funding bid was submitted to the GMCA in 
October, the outcome of which is expected early in 2023.  
 
SCC match funding is being sought via a capital bid for general unsupported borrowing 
of £0.600m in 2023/24, with an invest to save element of £0.050m.  
 
An in depth financial assessment, will be required as soon as funding sources are 
secured and SCC has gone out to tender for the contract, at which stage there will 
be more clarity on the cost implications. 
 
 

 
PROCUREMENT: Provided by: Heather Stanton, Category Manager xt 6241 
 
This contract was procured as a further competition under the Procure Plus 
Framework.  This is a compliant route to market which complies with PCR’s 2015 
and SCC standing orders. 
 

 
CONTACT OFFICERS: 
 
Hayley Nixon – Commercial Project Manager 
Majid Maqbool – Energy Manager 
  
 
Annex 1 – PSDS 3 Confirmed Sites 
 

Site Technology 

Beesley Green Community Centre  Heat 

Turnpike Messroom  Heat 
 
Annex 2 – PSDS 3b Proposed Sites 
 

Site Technology  

Eccles Town Hall Heat & Solar 

 

Page 10



 1 

Part 1 Report 

 

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR PLACE 

 
 
 

TO THE CITY MAYOR’S REGENERATION BRIEFING 

Date: 12th December 2022 

 

TITLE: 2 New Bailey letting of part 6th and 7th floors 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

The Deputy City Mayor is recommended to: 
Note the proposals detailed below on the terms as set out in the body of this report 
and on the detailed terms set out in an accompanying Part 2 report for approval 
elsewhere on the agenda. 
 

1 Approve the letting of approximately 27,056 sqft (2,514 sqm) of space 
comprising the whole of the 7th floor and part 6th floor at 2 New Bailey on 
the terms as set out in the accompanying Part 2 report 

2 The delegation of authority to the Strategic Director Place in conjunction with 
the S151 officer to: negotiate, agree, and finalise the detailed terms of the 
transaction. 

3 Authorise the Shared Legal Service to prepare all necessary documentation 
and to take all steps which are required to give effect to the above 
recommendations. 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  

The report outlines the proposal to let the 7th floor and part 6th floor at 2 New Bailey 
on a 10 year lease. 
___________________________________________________________________ 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: None 

 

KEY DECISION: Yes 

 
 
1.0 Background Information 

 
1.1  To be provided in the part 2 report 
 
 
 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4a



 2 

2.0 Conclusion 
 
2.1 This is a good letting to a good covenant and shows confidence in the New 

Bailey area as an established business district.   
 
2.2 The headline rent achieved will encourage and support the area and the 

upcoming rent reviews in the area 
 
2.3 The terms above have been viewed against the revised model cashflow for 2 

New Bailey and show a positive impact. 
  

 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: Regeneration, Business creation and Development.      

 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: 2 New Bailey is a fully 
compliant with building equality standards. 

• BREEAM Excellent 
• Wired Score Platinum 
• EPC Rating A 

 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  Low  

 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by Shared Legal Service 
 

Set out in Part 2 of the report 

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

Set out in Part 2 of the report 

 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS – No implications – commercial letting  

 

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A There are no HR implications arising from this 
proposal. 

 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS  

This is a CAT A building and is fully compliant with all current Building Regulation 
requirements. 

 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: None  

 

Page 12



 3 

 
LOCAL MEMBER VIEWS: Not consulted 

 

CONTACT OFFICER: Stephanie Mullenger  TEL NO: 07810 158682 

 

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: Ordsall 

 

Page 13



 1 

Part 1 Report 

 

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR PLACE 

 
 
 

TO THE CITY MAYOR’S REGENERATION BRIEFING 

Date: 12th December 2022 

 

TITLE: 100 Embankment – letting of 1,844sqm (19,847sqft) 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

The Deputy City Mayor is recommended to: 
Note the proposals detailed below on the terms as set out in the body of this report 
and on the detailed terms set out in an accompanying Part 2 report for approval 
elsewhere on the agenda. 

 
1 Approve the letting of 1,844sqm (19,847sqft) of space comprising the whole 

of the 6th floor at 100 Embankment on a new 10 year lease as set out in the 
accompanying Part 2 report 

2 Approve the payment of a capital sum by the City Council to facilitate the 
letting as detailed in the Part 2 report. 

3 Delegate authority to the Strategic Director Place in conjunction with the 
S151 officer to: negotiate, agree, and finalise the detailed terms of the 
transaction. 

4 Authorise the Shared Legal Service to prepare all necessary documentation 
and to take all steps which are required to give effect to the above 
recommendations. 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  

The report outlines the proposal to let the 6th floor of 100 Embankment. This will be 
the fourth agreed letting of space within the building and is dependent on securing 
the flexible office space provider recently approved by the Council.  Interest in the 
property is high and has increased since the news regarding the flexible workspace 
provision was announced. We are therefore confident that further lettings can be 
secured to start to provide a return on the sizeable commitment that the Council has 
made at 100 Embankment. 
___________________________________________________________________ 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: None 

 

KEY DECISION: Yes 

 

Page 14

Agenda Item 4b



 2 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: Regeneration, Business creation and Development.      

 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: As a CAT A building 100 
Embankment is fully compliant with building equality standards. 

 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  Low  

 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by Shared Legal Service 
The Council is under an obligation pursuant to section 123 Local Government Act 
1972, in respect of a disposal, to obtain best consideration reasonably obtainable 
taking into consideration all monetary and commercial factors. 
 
There are no adverse legal implications with regards to the proposed disposal 
provided that the disposal is at market value and accords with the requirements of 
Section 123 of the Local Government Act 1972 
 

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

Supplied by: Alison Woods, Interim Commercial Finance Manager 

Date: 30th November 2022 

As set out in the detailed Part 2 report    

 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS – No implications – commercial letting  

 

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A There are no HR implications arising from this 
proposal. 

 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS  

This is a CAT A building and is fully compliant with all current Building Regulation 
requirements. 

 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: None  

 
LOCAL MEMBER VIEWS: Not consulted 

 

CONTACT OFFICER: Stephanie Mullenger  TEL NO: 07810 158682 

 

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: Blackfriars 

 

Page 15



 1 

Part 1  Report 

 

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR PLACE 

 
 
 

TO THE CITY MAYOR’S REGENERATION BRIEFING 
         

Date 12th December 2022  

 

TITLE: 100 Embankment – Flexible workspace letting  

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 
The Deputy City Mayor is recommended to note the proposals detailed below on the 
terms as set out in the body of this report and on the detailed terms set out in an 
accompanying Part 2 report for approval elsewhere on the agenda. 

 
1 Note and approve that the terms provide for a capital payment by the City 

Council facilitate the letting and the new arrangements. 
 

2 Delegate authority to the Strategic Director Place in conjunction with the s151 
officer to; negotiate, agree and finalise the detailed terms of the transaction 

 
3 Authorise the Shared Legal Service to prepare all necessary documentation and 

to take all steps which are required to give effect to the above recommendations. 
 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  
The report outlines the requirement for additional contribution under the agreement to 
X and Why as a result of the current economic conditions  
 
Full details are in part 2 of the report  
 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: None 

 

Page 16

Agenda Item 4c



 2 

KEY DECISION: Yes: Required capital outlay associated with fit out exceeds 
£350,000 

 
 
 
Background 
 

To be covered in Part 2 Report 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

To be covered in the Part 2 report 

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

To be covered in the Part 2 report 

 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS  

To be covered in the Part 2 report 
 

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: 

 
There are no HR implications arising from this proposal. 

 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS  

This is a CAT A building and is fully compliant with all current Building Regulation 
requirements  

 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:  N/A 

 
Local Member Views: Not consulted 
 

 

CONTACT OFFICER: Stephanie Mullenger  TEL NO: 07766550136  

 

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: Blackfriars 

 

Page 17



PUBLIC INTEREST TEST – CHECKLIST 
Schedule 12A Local Government Act 1972 

 
 
Name of Report New letting Part 6th 
and 7th floors 2 New Bailey  

 
Committee Property and Regen 
Date 12th December 2022 

 
Category of exemption applied: Paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972  
 
The report contains commercially sensitive information that would prejudice the 
interests of the Council and the party taking the lease if the information were to be 
disclosed at this time. 
 
Public Interest Test Questionnaire 
 

FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT DISCLOSING INFORMATION 

Will disclosure help people to understand and participate in public 
debate about current issues? 
 
 

No 

Will disclosure help people to understand why the Council has taken 
certain decisions?  
 
 

Yes 

Will disclosure give the public information about the personal 
probity (or otherwise) of elected members or council staff? 
 
 

No 

Will disclosure encourage greater competition and better value for money 
for council taxpayers?  
 
 

No 

Will disclosure allow individuals and companies to understand 
decisions made by the Council that have affected their lives?  
 
 

No 

Is the information about factors that affect public health and public 
safety? (NB you should be careful if considering the release of 
information which might adversely affect public health and safety)   
 
 

No 

Will disclosure reveal incompetent, illegal or unethical decision-
making or examples of malpractice? 
 
 

No 

Will disclosure reveal that such maladministration has not in fact 
occurred? 
 
 

No 

 
 

Page 18

Agenda Item 6a



FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT WITHHOLDING INFORMATION 

Will disclosure damage the Council’s interests without giving the 
public any useful information? 
 

Yes 

Will disclosure damage another organisation or person’s interests, 
without giving the public any useful information?  
 

Yes 

Will disclosure give an unfair, prejudicial or inaccurate view of a 
situation? 
 

No 

Will disclosure prevent the effective delivery of services without giving the 
public useful information?  
 

No 

Will disclosure put the health and safety of any group or individuals 
at risk?  
 

No 

Is there a clear and coherent reason why the community in general would 
benefit more from information being withheld?  
 

Yes 

 

Justification of decision 

 

The decision relates to a commercial letting in a council owned building. 

The terms are commercially sensitive, and disclosure could prejudice both the 
Council and the party taking the lease. 

 

In addition, the party taking the lease have requested that the Council do not 
disclose their identity until legal matters are concluded. 

 

 
Name and Title:  Stephanie Mullenger, Strategic Asset Consultant 

 
Date: 26th November 2022 

 

Page 19



Document is Restricted

Page 20

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



PUBLIC INTEREST TEST – CHECKLIST 
Schedule 12A Local Government Act 1972 

 
 
Name of Report: 
100 Embankment, 6th Floor Lettings  

 
Committee Property and Regen 
Date 12th December 2022 

 
Category of exemption applied: Paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972  
 
The report contains commercially sensitive information that would prejudice the 
interests of the Council and the party taking the lease if the information were to be 
disclosed at this time 
 
Public Interest Test Questionnaire 
 

FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT DISCLOSING INFORMATION 

Will disclosure help people to understand and participate in public 
debate about current issues? 
 
 

No 

Will disclosure help people to understand why the Council has taken 
certain decisions?  
 
 

Yes 

Will disclosure give the public information about the personal 
probity (or otherwise) of elected members or council staff? 
 
 

No 

Will disclosure encourage greater competition and better value for money 
for council taxpayers?  
 
 

No 

Will disclosure allow individuals and companies to understand 
decisions made by the Council that have affected their lives?  
 
 

No 

Is the information about factors that affect public health and public 
safety? (NB you should be careful if considering the release of 
information which might adversely affect public health and safety)   
 
 

No 

Will disclosure reveal incompetent, illegal or unethical decision-
making or examples of malpractice? 
 
 

No 

Will disclosure reveal that such maladministration has not in fact 
occurred? 
 
 

No 

 
 

Page 21

Agenda Item 6b



FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT WITHHOLDING INFORMATION 

Will disclosure damage the Council’s interests without giving the 
public any useful information? 
 

Yes 

Will disclosure damage another organisation or person’s interests, 
without giving the public any useful information?  
 

Yes 

Will disclosure give an unfair, prejudicial or inaccurate view of a 
situation? 
 

No 

Will disclosure prevent the effective delivery of services without giving the 
public useful information?  
 

No 

Will disclosure put the health and safety of any group or individuals 
at risk?  
 

No 

Is there a clear and coherent reason why the community in general would 
benefit more from information being withheld?  
 

Yes 

 

Justification of decision 

(Please provide explicit reasoning) 

 

The decision relates to a commercial letting in a council owned building. 

The terms are commercially sensitive, and disclosure could prejudice both the 
Council and the party taking the lease. 

In addition, the party taking the lease have requested that the Council do not 
disclose their identity until legal matters are concluded. 

 

 
Name and Title:  Stephanie Mullenger, , Strategic Asset Consultant 

 
Date: 26th November 2022 

 

Page 22



Document is Restricted

Page 23

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



PUBLIC INTEREST TEST – CHECKLIST 
Schedule 12A Local Government Act 1972 

 
 
Name of Report:  
100 Embankment, East Wing Ground, 
1st and Part 2nd Floors Additional 
Contribution 

 
Committee Property and Regen 
Date 12th December 2022 

 
Category of exemption applied: Paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972  
 
The report contains commercially sensitive information that would prejudice the 
interests of the Council and the party taking the lease if the information were to be 
disclosed at this time. 
 
Public Interest Test Questionnaire 
 

FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT DISCLOSING INFORMATION 

Will disclosure help people to understand and participate in public 
debate about current issues? 
 
 

No 

Will disclosure help people to understand why the Council has taken 
certain decisions?  
 
 

Yes 

Will disclosure give the public information about the personal 
probity (or otherwise) of elected members or council staff? 
 
 

No 

Will disclosure encourage greater competition and better value for money 
for council taxpayers?  
 
 

No 

Will disclosure allow individuals and companies to understand 
decisions made by the Council that have affected their lives?  
 

No 

Is the information about factors that affect public health and public 
safety? (NB you should be careful if considering the release of 
information which might adversely affect public health and safety)   
 
 

No 

Will disclosure reveal incompetent, illegal or unethical decision-
making or examples of malpractice? 
 
 

No 

Will disclosure reveal that such maladministration has not in fact 
occurred? 
 

No 

 
 

Page 24

Agenda Item 6c



 

FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT WITHHOLDING INFORMATION 

Will disclosure damage the Council’s interests without giving the 
public any useful information? 
 

Yes 

Will disclosure damage another organisation or person’s interests, 
without giving the public any useful information?  
 

Yes 

Will disclosure give an unfair, prejudicial or inaccurate view of a 
situation? 
 

No 

Will disclosure prevent the effective delivery of services without giving the 
public useful information?  
 

No 

Will disclosure put the health and safety of any group or individuals 
at risk?  
 

No 

Is there a clear and coherent reason why the community in general would 
benefit more from information being withheld?  
 

Yes 

 

Justification of decision 

 

The decision relates to a commercial letting in a council owned building. 

The terms are commercially sensitive, and disclosure could prejudice both the 
Council and the party taking the lease. 

 

In addition, the party taking the lease have requested that the Council do not 
disclose their identity until legal matters are concluded. 

 

 
Name and Title:  Stephanie Mullenger, Strategic Asset Consultant 

 
Date: 26th November 2022 

 

Page 25



Document is Restricted

Page 26

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	3a Greater Manchester Decarbonisation Scheme - PSDS 3 and 3b
	4a 2 New Bailey, Part 6th and 7th Floors - Lettings (also see item 6a)
	4b 100 Embankment, 6th Floor - Lettings (also see item 6b)
	4c 100 Embankment, East Wing, Ground, 1st and Part 2nd Floors - Additional Contribution (also see item 6c)
	6a 2 New Bailey, Part 6th and 7th Floors - Lettings
	06aii 2 New Bailey 6th & 7th Floors

	6b 100 Embankment, 6th Floor - Lettings
	06bii  100 Embankment 6 Floor Lettings

	6c 100 Embankment, East Wing, Ground, 1st and Part 2nd Floors - Additional Contribution
	06cii 100 Embankment East Wing Additional Contributions


